
 
CITY OF MURFREESBORO 

 
HISTORIC ZONING COMMISSION 

 
Regular Meeting June 25, 2024 

3:30 PM, Council Chambers, City Hall 
 
 

I. Call to Order and determination of a quorum 
 

II. Public Comments 
 

III. Approve Minutes of the Regular Meeting on March 21, 2024 
 
IV. Election of Officers for 2024-2025 
 
V. Old Business 
 

a. Discussion of Commission’s request to research garage door 
approvals in the Historic District 
 

b. H-24—003:  444 East College Street, Bradley Chambers – Requesting 
review for the consideration of metal wood looking garage doors. 

 
VI. New Business 
 

a. H-24-006:  1019 East Main Street, Mr. Matt Ward-  
Requesting review for new fencing at an existing single-family residence.  
 

b. H-24-008:  315 East Main Street-St. Paul’s Episcopal Church  
Requesting review for new fencing and gates at an existing church.  
 

VII. Staff Reports and Other Business 
 

VIII. Adjourn 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



MINUTES 

OF THE CITY OF MURFREESBORO 

HISTORIC ZONING COMMISSION 

City Hall, 111 W. Vine Street, Council Chambers 

 

March 19, 2024 3:30PM 

 

Members Present:     Staff Present: 

Bill Jakes, Chair                                 Matthew Blomeley, Assistant Planning Director 

Jeff Davis, Vice-Chair     Amelia Kerr, Planner 

Linda Anderson      Roman Hankins, Assistant City Attorney 

David Becker       Ashley Fulghum, Recording Assistant 

Chase Salas 

Jim Thompson       

Members Absent: 

Gib Backlund 

Deborah Belcher 

Marimae White 

 

1.   Call to Order and Determination of a Quorum: 

 Chair Bill Jakes called the meeting to order and determined that a quorum was present. 

2.    Public Comments: 

 None 

3.    Consideration of Minutes: 

Ms. Linda Anderson motioned to approve the minutes of the February 20, 2024 Historic Zoning 

Commission meeting; the motion was seconded by Mr. Jim Thompson and was carried by the 

following vote: 

Aye: Linda Anderson 

         David Becker 



MURFREESBORO HISTORIC ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES 
March 19, 2024 
 

2 
 

Vice-Chair Jeff Davis 

Chair Bill Jakes 

Chase Salas 

Jim Thompson 

Nay: None 

4.    New Business: 

a.  Application [H-24-003] 444 East College Street- Bradley Chambers 

Ms. Amelia Kerr presented the Staff Comments regarding this item, a copy of which is 

maintained in the permanent files of the Planning Department and is incorporated into these 

minutes by reference. 

Mr. Bradley Chambers was present to answer questions. 

1. Smooth LP Smartside engineered wood siding to match the primary structure. 

Mr. Thompson asked if the exposure of each board on the garage will match the 

exposure on the house. Mr. Chambers confirmed that it will. 

Mr. David Becker motioned to approve the request; the motion was seconded by 

Mr. Chase Salas and was carried by the following vote: 

Aye: Linda Anderson 

         David Becker 

   Vice-Chair Jeff Davis 

   Chair Bill Jakes 

   Chase Salas 

   Jim Thompson 

 Nay: None 

2. Brick base of building around the garage to match the primary structure. 

Chair Jakes asked Mr. Chambers if he was able to source the exact same brick used 

for the house. Mr. Chambers confirmed that he did. 

Mr. Salas motioned to approve the request; the motion was seconded by Mr. Becker 

and was carried by the following vote: 

Aye: Linda Anderson 

         David Becker 



MURFREESBORO HISTORIC ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES 
March 19, 2024 
 

3 
 

   Vice-Chair Jeff Davis 

   Chair Bill Jakes 

   Chase Salas 

   Jim Thompson 

 Nay: None 

3. 6” gutters to match the primary structure. 

Chair Jakes inquired about the gutter size. Mr. Chambers stated that they will be 6”. 

Mr. Thompson asked if the downspouts would match what is on the house. Mr. 

Chambers confirmed that they will match. 

Vice-Chair Jeff Davis motioned to approve the request; the motion was seconded by 

Ms. Anderson and was carried by the following vote: 

Aye: Linda Anderson 

         David Becker 

   Vice-Chair Jeff Davis 

   Chair Bill Jakes 

   Chase Salas 

   Jim Thompson 

 Nay: None 

4. Garage roof to be asphalt shingles to match the primary structure. 

Chair Jakes confirmed with Mr. Chambers that the asphalt shingles to be used will 

match the ones on the primary structure. 

Mr. Salas asked if the shed roof would be included with this motion. Chair Jakes 

replied that it would be separate. 

Mr. Salas inquired whether the Commission had discussed structures having two 

different types and colors of roofing in the past. He recalled a previous applicant 

being asked not to do so by the Commission due to lack of historical accuracy.  

Mr. Salas asked the applicant if the garage will have black asphalt shingles and a 

white metal roof to match the house. Mr. Chambers confirmed that it will. Ms. 

Anderson asked if the front porch had metal roofing on it before the ceiling was 

raised for the second story. Mr. Chambers did not recall if it did. He stated that with 

the pitch of the roof, shingles would not work. Mr. Thompson stated that you 

cannot get a warranty on something that flat. The metal roof is the best way to go 



MURFREESBORO HISTORIC ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES 
March 19, 2024 
 

4 
 

because anything that flat needs to be rolled roofing, which the Commission would 

not want to see, or metal. 

 Ms. Kerr stated that the Commission did previously discuss two different types of 

roofing, in relation to Mr. Chambers’ previous application. The end result of that 

discussion was to allow him to have two different types of roofing due to the slope 

of the roof. 

Mr. Thompson motioned to approve the request; the motion was seconded by Vice-

Chair Davis and was carried by the following vote: 

Aye: Linda Anderson 

         David Becker 

   Vice-Chair Jeff Davis 

   Chair Bill Jakes 

   Chase Salas 

   Jim Thompson 

 Nay: None 

Mr. Thompson made a motion for a ratification and roll call vote for items one 

through four; the motion was seconded by Vice-Chair Davis and was carried by the 

following vote: 

Aye: Linda Anderson 

         David Becker 

   Vice-Chair Jeff Davis 

   Chair Bill Jakes 

   Chase Salas 

   Jim Thompson 

 Nay: None 

5. Side covered garage patio roof will be metal standing seam roof to match the 

dormer roof the primary structure. 

Chair Jakes inquired about the location of the standing seam roof on the garage. Mr. 

Chambers stated that it would be on the overhang of the covered patio. 

Ms. Anderson inquired about the pitch of the roof of the covered patio. Mr. 

Chambers responded that there is a slight one. 



MURFREESBORO HISTORIC ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES 
March 19, 2024 
 

5 
 

Mr. Thompson motioned to approve the request; the motion was seconded by Mr. 

Becker and was carried by the following vote: 

Aye: Linda Anderson 

         David Becker 

   Vice-Chair Jeff Davis 

   Chair Bill Jakes 

   Chase Salas 

   Jim Thompson 

 Nay: None 

6. Garage dormer windows are to match the primary structures dormer windows. 

Chair Jakes asked the applicant to describe the materials to be used for the 

windows. Mr. Chambers stated that he did not remember what he put on the 

application. 

Mr. Becker asked Mr. Chambers if he remembered what the windows on the 

dormer of the primary structure are made of. Mr. Chambers responded “no”. Ms. 

Kerr stated that she did not believe the dormer windows on the house were 

discussed. 

Chair Jakes stated that wooden or wood clad windows would suffice. Mr. Chambers 

agreed to match the dormer windows on the garage with the dormer windows on 

the existing house. 

Mr. Thompson motioned to approve the request; the motion was seconded by Ms. 

Anderson and was carried by the following vote: 

Aye: Linda Anderson 

         David Becker 

   Vice-Chair Jeff Davis 

   Chair Bill Jakes 

   Chase Salas 

   Jim Thompson 

 Nay: None 

 

 



MURFREESBORO HISTORIC ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES 
March 19, 2024 
 

6 
 

7. Side covered garage patio columns are to match the primary structures front 

porch columns, these will be handmade (the product information in the agenda is 

for size and style reference only). 

Chair Jakes asked what material the columns would be made of. Mr. Chambers 

replied that it is exterior MDF. 

Mr. Thompson asked if the columns would be hollow. Mr. Chambers said that they 

will be 6x6 posts wrapped in MDF. 

Mr. Salas motioned to approve the request; the motion was seconded by Mr. Becker 

and was carried by the following vote: 

Aye: Linda Anderson 

         David Becker 

   Vice-Chair Jeff Davis 

   Chair Bill Jakes 

   Chase Salas 

   Jim Thompson 

 Nay: None 

8. One single car garage door and one 2 car garage doors. 

Mr. Thompson inquired about the material for the proposed garage doors. Mr. 

Chambers responded that they will be metal doors. Mr. Thompson stated that the 

Commission has always approved wooden or wooden clad doors. He is concerned 

about setting a precedence for approving metal doors. Ms. Anderson also voiced 

concerns over approving metal doors. Mr. Chambers stated that the design on the 

doors makes them look wooden. Mr. Thompson asked the applicant if he would be 

willing to do wood doors. Mr. Chambers responded that he would rather not. Chair 

Jakes asked Mr. Chambers if he would be willing to use a clad product. Mr. 

Chambers responded that he would be willing to do a metal door with a wooden 

look. 

Mr. Thompson motioned to defer the request; the motion was seconded by Ms. 

Anderson and was carried by the following vote: 

Aye: Linda Anderson 

         David Becker 

   Chair Bill Jakes 

   Chase Salas 



MURFREESBORO HISTORIC ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES 
March 19, 2024 
 

7 
 

   Jim Thompson 

 Nay: Vice-Chair Jeff Davis 

9. Three (3) wall mounted gas lanterns on the front of the garage, one on both ends 

of the garage and one between the 2 garage doors. 

Ms. Anderson asked if the gas lanterns proposed would match the ones on the 

house. Mr. Chambers confirmed that they would match the gas lanterns on the 

house. 

Mr. Thompson asked if the lanterns would be free standing or sconces. Mr. 

Chambers responded they would be sconces. 

Ms. Anderson motioned to approve the request; the motion was seconded by Mr. 

Salas and was carried by the following vote: 

Aye: Linda Anderson 

         David Becker 

   Vice-Chair Jeff Davis 

   Chair Bill Jakes 

   Chase Salas 

   Jim Thompson 

 Nay: None 

10. 4” recessed lights to be added to the wooden soffits on all elevations around the 

garage. 

Chair Jakes verified the size and type of lights to be used with the applicant. 

Mr. Thompson asked the applicant how many lights are anticipated on each 

elevation of the garage. Mr. Chambers replied that there would be four on each 

side. 

Chair Jakes asked if the lights had black rings to match the soffits. Mr. Chambers 

confirmed that the lights will blend in well. 

Mr. Thompson motioned to approve the request; the motion was seconded by Mr. 

Becker and was carried by the following vote: 

Aye: Linda Anderson 

         David Becker 

   Vice-Chair Jeff Davis 

   Chair Bill Jakes 



MURFREESBORO HISTORIC ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES 
March 19, 2024 
 

8 
 

   Chase Salas 

   Jim Thompson 

 Nay: None 

Mr. Thompson inquired about the garage having an elevator. Mr. Chambers replied that it is for tables, 

so that he does not have to carry them upstairs. Mr. Thompson inquired about the headroom on the 

second floor. Mr. Chambers responded that the ceiling height would be a minimum of 8’. Mr. Thompson 

cautioned the applicant on making that space a dwelling unit. Mr. Chambers stated that no one would 

be living up there. 

Mr. Becker asked if research could be done on past approvals of garage doors. The commission and staff 

discussed the specifications of the research. 

Vice-Chair Davis inquired about allowing a wood clad metal garage door to be administratively 

approved. Mr. Hankins replied that the motion would need to be revised. 

Mr. Thompson motioned to amend the request for one single car garage door and one 2 car garage 

doors and to conditionally approve a wood clad metal garage door subject to staff administrative 

approval; the motion was seconded by Vice-Chair Davis and was carried by the following vote: 

Aye: Linda Anderson 

         David Becker 

  Vice-Chair Jeff Davis 

   Chair Bill Jakes 

   Chase Salas 

   Jim Thompson 

 Nay: None 

5.    Staff Reports and Other Business: 

  None 

6. Adjourn 

There being no further business, Chair Jakes adjourned the meeting at 4:18pm. 

 

 

 

_________________________________  ________________________________ 

CHAIRMAN OR VICE-CHAIRMAN  SECRETARY    



City of Murfreesboro 
Historic Zoning Commission 
Staff Comments 
Regular meeting: June 25, 2024 
 
Old Business: 

 
a. Discussion of Commission’s request to research garage door approvals in the 

Historic District 
 

At the March 19, 2024, regular meeting the Historic Zoning Commission requested for 
staff to research past approvals of metal garage doors.  As requested, staff researched 
garage doors reviewed by the HZC over a number of years and found that a number of 
metal clad garage doors, metal that had a wood look garage doors and faux wood metal 
clad garage doors were approved.  Pictures of some approved metal doors in the Historic 
District and minutes from previous meetings regarding metal garage doors are in your 
agenda package.  Due to this research and information provided a discussion on garage 
doors and future direction is needed by the Commission members. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

- wood clad metal garage door         Steel door with 5/8” overlay       2017 

 

Steel door                                                                                                         2008 



 

Steel with wood look       2019 

 

 

Steel with wood look       2023    
     



 

Steel      2020 

 

Wood          



 

Faux Wood       2021 



 

Aluminum        2015 

 



 

Wood      2004 

 



324 East College Street 

H-23-002 by John and Laura Vanzandt 

This application came before the Commission at the March 21, 2023 meeting. The commission voted 

unanimously to approve the request for the painted metal door.  

Example Image Submitted: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Excerpt of the approved minutes from the March 21,2023 meeting: 

1. Wood-stained metal garage door. 

 

Mr. Vanzandt stated that the door is metal with a wood painted texture. 

 

Ms. Anderson inquired about metal doors as opposed to wooden ones in the 

Historic District. Chair Jakes responded that the Commission had approved 

metal garage doors in the past. 

 

Vice-Chair Davis moved to approve the request. The motion was seconded by 

Ms. Marimae White and carried by the following vote: 

Aye: Linda Anderson 

Gib Backlund 

David Becker 

Vice-Chair Jeff Davis 

Chair Bill Jakes 

Marimae White 

Nay: None 

 

The video below is of the March 21, 2023 meeting and begins where full discussion of the garage door 

starts. 

https://youtu.be/6PesauwddLs?list=PLXjPQW-GeBG6WIv4qQPpwf7nbi5dKghAR&t=807 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

https://youtu.be/6PesauwddLs?list=PLXjPQW-GeBG6WIv4qQPpwf7nbi5dKghAR&t=807


Approval letter: 

 



451 E College Street 

H-20-004 & H-21-009 by Richard & Vickie Fewell 

In June 2020, the Commission initially approved the garage doors. In December 2021, the 
applicants requested to change the garage doors to a different style. 

 

The top image is of the approved doors from June 2020. The bottom image is of the approved doors 
from the December 2021 

 

 



 

 

 



Minutes from June 2020 Meeting: 

Garage Doors and Man Doors 
 
Chairman Thompson referred to the garage doors asking the design and materials to be used. 
 
Mr. Bates showed a photo of the style of garage doors proposed with windows at the top and 
wood panels.  He said instead of having the wood panels, they plan to paint the doors a dark gray 
color that will be used on the other exterior of the house.  He also showed a photo of the color. 
 
Chairman Thompson asked the proposed design and materials of the man doors on the outside of 
the house. 
 
Mr. Bates showed a photo of the style of the front door and doors on the back patio.  He added 
they plan to use the dark gray color. 
 
Chairman Thompson asked if the doors will be painted or stained. 
 
Mr. Bates said they will probably stain the front door because those doors will be a custom 
mahogany door.  He said the doors on the back of the house will probably be painted. 
 
Chairman Thompson asked what the materials were for the garage doors.   
 
Mr. Bates said metal cladding and will be painted. 
 
Chairman Thompson said the Commission has not approved metal doors and asked the Builder 
to come to the podium. 
 
The Builder came to the podium and said they priced metal doors with a cladding but there are 
several other options they could pick.  He said this option is paintable or you can get a standard 
color, depending on what color is selected. 
 
Chairman Thompson asked if it is metal door. 
 
The Builder said it is a metal-clad door and what you see is metal. 
 
Chairman Thompson asked if the door was metal-clad to what. 
 
The Builder was not sure what the material was but said it is more of a wood door, like a clad 
window. 
 
Chairman Thompson asked if it were a metal-clad wood door. 
 
The Builder agreed. 
 
Ms. White verified the finish looks like wood. 
 



The Builder said that option is available. 
 
Chairman Thompson verified the garage doors would be a dark gray. 
 
The Builder said yes. 
 
Ms. White verified the garage doors would have a wood texture. 
 
The Builder agreed. 
 
Mr. Bates said there were two different versions available and wasn’t sure what the company that 
priced that so that is why he asked the Builder to come to the podium.  Mr. Bates said some have 
the wood texture and they would paint the doors.  This is already finished with that stained gray 
look.  He said it will be one version or the other.   
 
Ms. White said it sounds like it will be very tasteful. 
 
Chairman Thompson asked for questions from the Commission regarding the garage doors and 
man doors. 
 
Ms. Anderson made a motion to approve the proposed garage door and man doors.  The 
motion was seconded by Mr. Salas.  Upon roll call, the motion was passed by the following 
vote: 
 
  Aye: Linda Anderson 
   Deborah Belcher 
   Jeff Davis 
   Bill Jakes 
   Chase Salas 
   Jim Thompson 
   Marimae White 
 
   Nay: 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



The approval letter from June 2020: 

 



Request for a change: 

 



Minutes from the December 2021 Meeting: 

a. Zoning application [2021-H-001] for 451 East College Street, requesting 
additional changes from approved plans of the final design review for a new 
single-family residence currently under construction pertaining to the 
garage door style and the addition of a dormer to the west elevation on the 
second floor.  (Project Planner: Amelia Kerr): 

Mathew Blomeley presented the Staff Comments regarding this Item, a copy of which is 
maintained in the permanent files of the Planning Department and is incorporated into 
these Minutes by reference. 

Terry Bates, architect of 1705 19th Avenue So, Nashville, TN 37212 came to the podium 
to address questions from the Commission.  

Chairman Jim Thompson requested to review earlier exterior photos within application 
packet, discovering that the requested dormer is already pre-existing on the home. 

Mr. Thompson stated that this is a mea culpa presentation, stating that the dormer was 
installed without permission. 

Mr. Bates added that the addition was not an intentional omission. 

Chairman Thompson reiterated and advised any potential applicants to not complete 
projects prior to Commission’s approval, as it is a risk to the applicant and the Commission 
may call for any actions to be reversed. 

There being no further discussion, Jeff Davis moved to approve the application, subject 
to all staff recommendations; The motion was seconded by Vice-Chair David Becker, 
and upon roll call the motion was approved by the following vote: 

   

Aye:  Jeff Davis 

Bill Jakes 

Linda Anderson 

David Becker, Vice-Chair 

  Jim Thompson, Chairman 

 

Nay:  None 

 

 

 



The approval letter from December 2021: 

 



550 East Main Street 

H-17-005 by Steve James for Ken Stone 

This application came before the Commission at the March 21, 2017 meeting. The applicant agreed to 

use a wooden door but did not include a cut sheet for the Commission to see at the meeting. The 

application was approved with the condition that cut sheets of garage windows and doors would need to 

be submitted to Mr. Ornelas for final approval. 

Excerpt from the March 21,2017 meeting: 

Chairman Thompson noticed the garage doors themselves will be specified by the owner and asked 
what that means. 
 
Mr. James said the garage doors are pretty much a selection process and will try to get something 
as close to what they have represented. 
 
Chairman Thompson asked if the garage doors would be made to look like a pair of carriage doors. 
 
Mr. James said yes. 
 
Chairman Thompson said the HZC normally requires cut-sheets of windows and doors to review 
and make sure it’s something they like. 
 
Ms. Anderson asked if the garage doors would be wood. 
 
Mr. James said he would prefer to not use a wood door for the maintenance issue but does plan to 
do a wood door. 
 
Chairman Thompson said the doors are not so big since they are single-car garage door and won’t 
start to sag like some wooden doors would.  He said wood garage doors would be preferred. 
 
Chairman Thompson asked is the trellis-like design over the garage door is made of wood.       
 
Mr. James said yes. 
 
Vice-Chair Becker made a motion to approve the demolition of the existing garage and 
replacing it with a new detached garage as submitted.  The motion was seconded by Ms. 
Garland. 
 
Mr. Backlund commented the type of garage doors has not been determined yet. 
 
Chairman Thompson suggested the applicant submit cut-sheets of the doors and windows to Mr. 
Ornelas for final approval. 
 
Mr. Ornelas said the applicant told him the garage doors will look like the submitted rendering but 
hasn’t decided on the color yet.   



 
Chairman Thompson said the color would not need approval from the HZC. 
 
Chairman Thompson asked if the south elevation would have a fence in front of it. 
 
Mr. James said that is the rear of the property so they didn’t show any detail back there. 
 
Chairman Thompson asked again if there is a fence immediately next to it. 
 
Mr. James said yes, there is a fence. 
 
Chairman Thompson said the fence basically hides that side of the house. 
 
Vice-Chair Becker amended his motion to include the following condition of approval: 

1) The applicant will submit cut-sheets for the doors and windows of the garage to Mr. 
Ornelas for distribution to the Historic Zoning Commission for final approval. 

The motion carried unanimously in favor. 
 
 
The video below is of the March 21, 2017 meeting and begins where the full discussion of the 
garage doors starts. 
 
https://youtu.be/jWbdeXsiz64?t=693 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

https://youtu.be/jWbdeXsiz64?t=693


Example Image Submitted: 

 

 



 

 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 



Approval Letters: 

 



 

 



2255 Middle Tennessee Blvd. 

H-19-014 & H-19-015 by Jeff & Ann Davis 

These applications came before the Commission in November and December 2019. At the November 

meeting, the applicants agreed to a wood composite garage door for initial review. 

 

Example Image Submitted: 

 

 

 



Excerpt from the Minutes 11/19/19: 

Mr. Jakes asked what type of material they planned to use on the garage doors. 
 
Mr. Fletcher said they haven’t made a final decision but looking at a wood composite material or 
something of that higher quality nature. 
 
The motion made: 

Ms. Belcher made a motion to approve the initial review for construction of a new two-story 
detached garage with a little work on the Chinese Chip n Dale area on property located at 
2255 Middle Tennessee Boulevard.  The motion was seconded by Ms. Anderson and 
approved unanimously. 
 
Chairman Thompson informed the applicant this is an approval for the concept plan only and they 
need to come back before the Commission the submit formally when the final plans are complete.  
Samples of the brick, shingles, elevations, lighting, etc. will need to be brought to the Commission 
for final approval. 
 

Excerpt from the Minutes 12/17/19: 

Chairman Thompson complimented the design of the building and particularly liked the front.  
He thanked Mr. Davis for changing the Chip n Dale stating the proposal today is a much more 
complementary design to the structure and the existing house.  Chairman Thompson said the 
Commission can only review the elevations they can see from the right-of-way.  He said, as you 
look at the plan, the site toward the tree is pretty much hidden and if you try to get into the 
garage, it will be completely windowless.  Chairman Thompson suggested between the two 
doors that come from the porch, you might put a window to the left.  He feels it would be a 
benefit to have light going into the garage. 
 
Chairman Thompson noticed the first door is fiberglass and we don’t normally allow fiberglass 
in the Historic District.  He mentioned the windows that were brought up before are PVC, so 
those are plastic, in common terms.  We typically only do wood windows.  He said we have done 
metal-clad on a detached garage once before but typically it is wood.  Chairman Thompson said 
the windows we cannot see, we can’t review.  He worries about the fatigue of the windows over 
time.  He did not know about PVC performance but knows that vinyl tends to droop over 
fiberglass.  Chairman Thompson said the fiber-cement board has also been approved in the 
Historic District.   
 
Chairman Thompson asked if the shingles on the new garage will match the existing shingles on 
the house. 
 
Mr. Holland said yes, as close as possible. 
 
Chairman Thompson asked if all the new fencing would be 5-feet in height.   
 
Mr. Holland said yes. 



 
Chairman Thompson asked where the spiked fencing be placed. 
 
Mr. Holland said the front yard. 
 
Chairman Thompson asked for the Commissions thoughts and possible motion on the garage, 
separate from the front yard fence. 
 
Mr. Becker said he had Fiber-X composite-type windows approved at his prior house located on 
Main Street.  He wanted to remind the Commission approval has been given for some 
composite-type materials other than wood. 
 
Chairman Thompson said the Fiber-X composite-type material was ground up PVC and wood, 
so it had a large content of wood.  He said it wasn’t just plastic but contained a large quantity and 
that is why it was approved.  The cut-sheet for this application shows the window itself is all 
PVC except the wood material back-up in the jam so a very small percentage is wood.  Chairman 
Thompson said the Commission allowed a metal-clad wood window at a house on Main Street.   
 
Mr. Holland said they will research windows and pull the Fiber-X and Bella with Anderson’s. 
 
Mr. Becker said they used Pella wood windows in the house and Fiber-X in the enclosed porch 
area. 
 
Mr. Jakes asked if the windows in question were located on the front, eastern elevation that face 
the road. 
Chairman Thompson said yes, stating those are the windows that can be seen from the right-of-
way, so the Commission can review and comment.  The other windows cannot be seen from the 
right-of-way. 
 
Mr. Jakes said, other than the window material selection, the elevations look great and 
compliments the house.  He thinks it will be a great addition. 
 
Chairman Thompson asked if there were any concerns over the fiberglass door.  He said it is set-
back on the eastern elevation so it may not be visible from the right-of-way. 
 
Mr. Holland said they will make the door the same as the windows for the front elevation. 
 
Chairman Thompson said if a wood door is installed, it wouldn’t be affected by the elements 
since it will be covered.   
 
Mr. Jakes made a motion to approve the final review for the construction of a new two-
story detached garage with the proposed fencing connecting to the garage with exception to 
the windows and doors on the front elevation.  Staff was authorized to approve the 
windows and doors when an acceptable wood-type material is determined.  The motion was 
seconded by Mr. Becker and carried unanimously in favor. 
 



Approval Letter: 

 

 



City of Murfreesboro 
Historic Zoning Commission 
Staff Comments 
Regular meeting: June 25, 2024 
 
Old Business: 

 
H-24--003  444 East College Street, Bradley Chambers- Requesting review for 
the consideration of metal wood looking garage doors. 
 

 



This property is located on the south side of East College Street several lots to the west of 
North Highland Avenue. The property is zoned RS- 8 (Single-Family Residential District 
8) and H-1 (Historic Zoning Overlay District). It is also located in the CCO (City Core 
Overlay) district. 
 
At the March 19, 2024, regular meeting the Historic Zoning Commission voted to approve 
the request for a 2 story, three (3) car garage with a side covered patio with the condition 
that a cut sheet must be provided to and administratively approved by Ms. Kerr, Planner, 
that shows the specific wooden clad metal doors to be used.   
 
The applicant, Mr. Bradley Chambers would like to request approval for his originally 
proposed metal wood looking garage doors. 
 
Pictures of the garage as it is today, and proposed garage door specifications are included 
in the agenda materials. 
 
The applicant will attend the meeting in order to answer any questions the Commission 
may have regarding the request.  
 

 



 

 

 

March 19, 2024 

 

Bradley Chambers 
444 East College Street 
Murfreesboro, TN 37130 
 
RE: H-24-003- 444 East College Street 
 
Dear Mr. Chambers, 

Please be advised that at its regular meeting held on March 19, 2024, the Historic Zoning 
Commission voted to approve your request for a garage located at 444 East College Street. The 
approved modifications include: 
 

1. Smooth LP Smartside engineered wood siding to match the primary structure. 
2. Brick base of building around the garage to match the primary structure. 
3. 6” gutters to match the primary structure. 
4. Garage roof to be asphalt shingles to match the primary structure. 
5. Side covered garage patio roof will be metal standing seam roof to match the dormer roof 

of the primary structure. 
6. Garage dormer windows are to be wood or wood clad to match the primary structures 

dormer windows. 
7. Side covered garage patio columns are to match the primary structures front porch 

columns, these will be handmade (the product information in the agenda is for size and 
style reference only). 

8. Three (3) wall mounted gas lanterns on the front of the garage, one on both ends of the 
garage and one between the 2 garage doors. 

9. 4” recessed lights to be added to the wooden soffits on all elevations around the garage. 
 
 
The above request for 444 East College Street was approved by the Historic Zoning Commission 
with the following condition: 
 

1. One single car garage door and one 2 car garage doors. A cut sheet must be provided to 
and approved by Ms. Kerr, Planner, that shows the specific wooden clad metal doors to be 
used. 

 



Please keep a copy of this letter as evidence of the Commission’s action.  If you have any questions, 
please contact me at (615)-893-6441. 
 

Sincerely, 

 

Amelia Kerr 
Planner 
cc:   Building and Codes Department 

  

af 

 















City of Murfreesboro 

Historic Zoning Commission 

Staff Comments 

Regular meeting: June 25, 2024 
 

New Business: 

 

H-24-006:  1019 East Main Street, Mr. Matt Ward-  

Requesting review for new fencing installed at an existing single-family residence.  

 

 
 
 

This property is located on the northwest corner of  East Main Street and Park Circle. The 

brick eclectic vernacular style one and one half (1 ½) story single-family house with 

wraparound porch was constructed in 1903.  The property contains approximately 0.41 

acres and is zoned RS-15 (Single-Family Residential District 15) and H-1 (Historic Zoning 

Overlay District). It is also located in the CCO (City Core Overlay) district.   

 



Properties to the north and south of the subject property are zoned RS-10 (Residential 
Single-Family Residential District 10) and properties to the east and west are zoned RS-15 
(Residential Single-Family Residential District 15). The applicant has recently installed an 
8’ tall privacy fencing along the north side (32’) and west side (16’) lot lines and is 
requesting HZC approval for the fence. 
 
A portion of the fence will be visible from the right-of-way of Park Circle.  The style of 
wooden fencing the applicant has installed is included in the application materials.  There 
are several similar fences which have been approved by the HZC on properties located 
within the vicinity. The design guidelines for the historic district state that “fences may be 
added to a lot if they are similar material to other fences in the vicinity, and if they are 
constructed so as to not disrupt the visual harmony of the front area of the lots.”   
 
Pictures of the home as it exists today, as well as some photos showing the fencing are 
included in the agenda materials. 
 
The applicant will attend the meeting in order to answer any questions the Commission 
may have regarding the requests.  

















City of Murfreesboro 

Historic Zoning Commission 

Staff Comments 

Regular meeting: June 25, 2024 
 

New Business: 

 

H-24-008:  315 East Main Street-St. Paul’s Episcopal Church  

Requesting review for new fencing and gates at an existing church.  

 

 
 

This property is located on the northeast corner of East Main Street at the intersection of 

North/South Academy Street. The original chapel was moved to this location in 1925 and 

a new sanctuary was added to the chapel in 2002 in the neo-gothic architecture style.  The 

property contains approximately 1.4 acres and is zoned CH (Commercial Highway) and RS-

15 (Single-Family Residential District 15) and H-1 (Historic Zoning Overlay District). It 

is also located in the CCO (City Core Overlay) district.   

 



The property to the north is zoned OG-R (Office General-Residential)), the property to the 
south and west are zoned CBD (Central Business District), property to the east of the 
subject property is Junior’s Foodland and is zoned CH (Commercial Highway). All 
surrounding properties are also in the CCO and the H-1 (Historic Zoning Overlay District)  
 
The church currently has two (2) pony wall/corral fencing enclosing their HVAC systems 
and propose to install 3’ industrial strength aluminum decorative fencing upon the existing 
pony walls.  The applicant also proposes to replace the wooden privacy gates with the same 
industrial strength aluminum decorative gates to match the new fencing. The two (2) 
HVAC corral walls, and gate areas are located along East Main Street and another along 
North Academy and both are visible from the rights-of-way.  The HVAC pony wall along 
East Main Street with the addition of the 3’ aluminum panel fencing atop of the pony wall 
will be 10’ overall height.  The total length of fencing to be added at this location is 
approximately 36’.  The proposed matching gate will be 10’ in height.   The second HVAC 
pony wall along North Academy Street is 4’ in height and with the addition of the 3’ 
aluminum fencing atop of the pony wall the fencing will be approximately 7’ overall 
height.  The total length of fencing to be added at this location is approximately 21’.  There 
are several similar aluminum fences on properties located within the Historic Zoning 
District.  The design guidelines for the historic district state that “fences may be added to 
a lot if they are similar material to other fences in the vicinity, and if they are constructed 
so as to not disrupt the visual harmony of the front area of the lots.”   
 
Pictures of the church walls as they exists today, as well as some product material 
specifications are included in the agenda materials. 
 
The applicant will attend the meeting in order to answer any questions the Commission 
may have regarding the requests.  















The fencing atop the brick wall on both E Main St and N Academy are three feet tall. The gates are taller as they will run the three feet height of 
the metal fence plus the height of the brick wall. Below the gate is actually 10’ tall and 2’ 9.5” wide, whereas the top fence is consistently three 
feet tall in panels that run either 8’ or 6’5” wide. The look from the sidewalk/road will be a consistent height. The only outlier of difference here is 
the variance in elevation of the ground making the brick wall shorter to the left and taller to the right. The ground elevation difference will not 
affect the fence level.
























